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PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

ABOUT NTINGA OR TAMBO DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

Ntinga is a wholly-owned municipal entity of the O.R. Tambo District Municipality (ORTDM). The Ntinga 
O.R. Tambo Development Agency was established by the ORTDM as a service utility which serves as a 
special purpose vehicle that is responsible for driving local economic development in the OR Tambo 
district. The agency has since been converted into a State-Owned Company Limited (SOC Ltd). 

 
STRATEGIC OVERVIEW 

Vision 

“Vibrant and Sustainable Communities” 

 

Mandate 

As established by the ORTDM, the agency is thus mandated: 

 

To perform activities which fall within the functions and powers of district municipalities as 
contemplated in Section 84(1) of the Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act 117 of 1998), in particular 
Section 84 (1). These activities are: 
 

• Integrated Development Planning; 
• Potable Water Supply Systems; 
• Domestic and Industrial Waste-water and Sewage Disposal Systems; 
• Fresh Produce Markets and Abattoirs; 
• Local Tourism Promotion; 
• Municipal Public Works; 
• Taxes, Levies and Duties, and 
• Discretionary Activities. 

 
The Ntinga O.R. Tambo Development Agency has responded to the unique challenges facing the district 
by adopting the following strategic approach toward local economic development: 

• Effective harnessing of tangible and intangible resources in the district 
• Mobilisation and leveraging of financial and other resources 
• Spearheading of a sustainable human capital resource development 
• Pursuance of innovation and best practise including indigenous system 
• Effective planning and consultation 
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The agency drives local economic development through structured support packages in the following 
areas: 

Agriculture 

Sustainable water services and infrastructure development 

Tourism 

Forestry 

Trade 

Investment Promotion 

 

Values 

Nurture and care 

Leadership 

Agility 

Innovation and creativity 

Growth and development 

Accountability and transparency 

Good governance 

 

Strategic goals 

a) Sustainable water services (water supply and sanitation) systems. 

b) Enhanced and enabled full value chains   (upstream and downstream) for agricultural produce, 
markets, abattoirs and aquaculture. 

c) Diversified partnerships that promote inclusive socio-economic development and growth. 

d) Dynamic, capable and sustainable state owned company. 
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL 
REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 
  
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following; 
 
All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the annual financial 
statements audited by the Auditor General. 
 
The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions. 
 
The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report issued by 
National Treasury. 
 
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP) Standards applicable to the public entity. 
 
The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and the 
judgements made in this information. 
 
The accounting authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control to 
provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, human 
resources information and the annual financial statements. 
 
The external auditors were engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 
statements. 
 
In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human 
resource information and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year ended 30 June 
2019.  
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
.....................................   ...................................      
    
Chairperson of the Board   Chief Executive Officer 
SE Mase     PK Pongwana 
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CHAIRPERSON’S FOREWORD 

The culmination of the 2018/19 financial year provides an apt opportunity for an honest and incisive 
appraisal of organisational performance in a generally challenging operating environment. The prevailing 
service delivery environment requires stewards of public assets such as Ntinga to practice financial 
prudence in the face of significant fiscal and budgetary constraints. 

This challenge is not unique to Ntinga and the O.R. Tambo District Municipality. It therefore requires 
innovative approaches in the discharge of the mandate delivery function. In particular, the effective 
discharge of the Ntinga mandate requires ethically, inspired and superior leadership acumen which 
should lead to an enhanced and pronounced development impact. 

As such, the Board of Directors is acutely cognisant that its success will be measured through the diligent 
application of its collective wisdom and posture which is targeted at the attainment of meaningful socio-
economic change within the district. The Board’s interventions are directed at providing adequate support 
and counsel to management in order to ensure that Ntinga interventions and delivery instruments are 
focussed on the alleviation of poverty and unemployment in the district. In this regard, the Board has 
consistently impressed upon management that Ntinga’s programmes should be a lived and qualitative 
experience which complements the quantitative posture characterising the corporate reporting regime. In 
essence, the agency is required to prioritise the human experience in the delivery of its mandate. 

FIT-FOR-PURPOSE AGENCY 

Subsequently, during the period under review, the Board embarked on a recruitment exercise which was 
aimed at filling critical executive vacancies. The appointment of  competent and proficient management  
forms a central pillar in the execution of the Ntinga strategy. The strategy is seized with positioning the 
agency as a catalyst for local economic development in key economic sectors such as agriculture and 
agro-processing, water services and infrastructure, tourism as well as investment and trade promotion. 
This is an enormous undertaking which requires human capital with the requisite technical and leadership 
acumen.  

As a result, while the Board oversight function remains sound, its effectiveness was limited by the 
absence of a company secretary, the chief executive officer and the head of enterprises during the period 
under review. These vacancies severely curtailed  the agency’s ability to effectively execute its mandate. 
However, I am confident that by the end of the review period or soon thereafter, our recruitment exercise 
which is aimed at filling these critical vacancies will be finalised. The appointment of these key executives 
should bring certainty and clarity of purpose in strategy implementation.  

In pursuit of this developmental and transformative agenda, the Board is leading the implementation of 
progressive human capital policies which are premised on a culture of organisational excellence, the 
improvement of employment relations as well as the retention of staff. The Board recognises that in order 
to support its aspirations of a fit-for-purpose world-class institution, it needs to reward superior 
performance, skills and experience. In addition, the agency’s major constraint is the non-implementation 
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of section 89 of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) regarding the review of upper limits. This 
matter needs to be resolved urgently. 

FINANCIAL VIABILITY AND ORGANISATIONAL SUSTAINABILITY 

The Board is also aware that it has to use its creative energy to reduce its financial dependence on the 
state. However, the effectiveness of this goal is dependent on the adoption of a well-structured allocation 
of capital for non-income generating developmental mandates, such as the promotion of rural farming and 
marketing days for local communities, amongst other.  

These are ongoing discussions with the shareholder which are aimed at attaining long-term financial 
stability and organisational sustainability. In this vein, I am pleased to announce that Ntinga received an 
unqualified audit opinion in the 2018/19 financial year. This audit opinion reaffirms that Ntinga is a 
responsible and trustworthy corporate citizen which channels and mobilises public funds for its intended 
use. This should also bolster funder and public confidence in the agency and it should attract the requisite 
financial support for effective mandate delivery.  

Similarly, the Board accepts the audited 2018/2019 Annual Financial Statements from the Auditor-
General and the Annual Performance Report from Ntinga management. On behalf of the Board, I duly 
present the Audited Annual Financial Statements and Annual Performance Report for the year 2018/19 to 
the Shareholder, the Council of the O.R. Tambo District Municipality. 

Furthermore, the Board is pleased that the organisation has achieved a smooth transition from a 
municipal service utility into a State-Owned Company (SOC). During this complex transition, municipal 
assets, people and liabilities were successfully transferred from the service utility to the new SOC without 
incurring further financial risks. In addition, the agency has successfully ensured that its strategy finds 
expression, alignment and resonance with the O.R. Tambo Council strategy. 

MANDATE DELIVERY 

I am pleased that in 2018/19, Ntinga recorded a formidable set of operational results in pursuit of its 
strategic goals. During the period under review, the organisation repaired 76 non-functional water 
schemes while another 58 water schemes were assessed.  

A total of 606 livestock units were slaughtered at the abattoir. The abattoir generated R7,8million of 
revenue in 2018/19. A total of 764 cattle was produced at Adam Kok Farms generating a revenue of R4,6 
million. In addition, 18 hectares (ha) of potatoes planted at Adam Kok Farms were harvested. The harvest 
was sold at the Kei Fresh Produce Market. 

A new off-take agreement was also signed by a customer to buy meat from the abattoir. Negotiations are 
also taking place with an investor that seeks to implement an alternative energy project in the district. 

The Board is pleased that compliance requirements including budget approval, in-year performance and 
financial reporting were met during the period under review.  A total of R1,2m in investment income was 
collected. While there are supply chain management issues that are being addressed, the agency 
continues to pay its suppliers on time.  
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SHAREHOLDER COMPACT 

In pursuit of the fulfilment of its fiduciary responsibilities, the Board has identified areas that require 
improvement in the shareholder compact and stakeholder relations. These matters were raised collegially 
through the mayoral committee and the municipal administration for proper presentation at the 
shareholder council. For instance, matters relating to the alignment of the council mandate and Ntinga’s 
strategic goals require a clear funding regime in the areas of water services, revenue enhancement, 
agriculture and value chain services. Clarity is also vital in the role of Ntinga in the implementation of key 
strategic partnerships such as the Rural Agricultural Finance Initiative (RAFI) and its policy objectives. 
This is important if ORTDM is to successfully promote the agro-processing sector, green economy and 
food security.   

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS 

The organisation also recognises that the development and maintenance of high-value strategic 
partnerships lies at the epicentre of efficient mandate delivery. As such, the agency continues to harness 
the collective energy of funders, partners, third-parties and like-minded organisations in order to improve 
its effectiveness. In this regard, I want to thank Ntinga’s key stakeholders particularly the farmers, 
cooperatives, business community and the communities of the O.R. Tambo District for their constructive 
criticism and commitment to the cause of Ntinga. 

APPRECIATION 

I am grateful for the support and guidance of Her Worship, the Executive Mayor of ORTDM, Councillor 
Sokhanyile. I extend the Board’s appreciation to the mayoral committee and the O.R. Tambo District 
Municipality Council. Furthermore, I extend my appreciation to the municipal manager Mr Owen Hlazo for 
his ongoing support as well as that of his executive team. I am equally grateful to the Board of Directors 
for its wise counsel and astute leadership acumen in a challenging operational and fiscal environment. I 
am pleased that the Board of Directors continues to marshal its collective skills and resources to steer 
Ntinga toward a sustainable growth trajectory. Finally, the agency is entering the new financial year in 
anticipation of a breakthrough appointment of a new chief executive officer. I, however, extend my sincere 
appreciation to the acting chief executive officer, Loyiso Mbiko and the executive management team for 
holding the fort during this challenging period. This appreciation extends to the entire Ntinga family for 
their determination in effecting real and material economic change in the communities which Ntinga 
serves.  

.……………………………………… 

SE Mase 

Chairperson of Board of Directors 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

I am pleased to present the 2018/19 financial year performance report of the Ntinga O.R. Tambo Agency. 
Steering the Ntinga ship provides an empowering opportunity as well as the requisite platforms, channels 
and resources to effect real and sustainable socio-economic redress.  

The organisation is concerned with the mobilisation of financial and other resources as well as strategic 
partnerships which are geared toward the attainment of a solid and sound socio-economic dividend. The 
effectiveness of Ntinga will be evidenced by its resolve to ensure that the most pressing challenges of 
poverty and unemployment are effectively addressed by harnessing its skills and resources for an 
improved development impact.  

STRATEGIC POSTURE 

During the period under review, the organisation identified which levers it needs to pull in order to provide 
practical expression to the demands of the shareholder as well of the communities we exist to serve. This 
exercise culminated in the development and implementation of a corporate strategy which is poised on 
four strategic goals. 

Subsequently, the agency adopted four strategic goals which will guide the organisation in its quest to 
build a robust and resilient regional economy. These goals are the development of sustainable water 
services (water supply and sanitation) systems, enhanced and enabled full value chains (upstream and 
downstream) for agricultural produce, markets, abattoirs and aquaculture. The third goal is the 
establishment of diversified partnerships that promote inclusive socio-economic development and growth 
as well as the realisation of a dynamic, capable and sustainable state-owned company. 

The agency continued to review the performance improvement plans it developed in the previous financial 
year which are aimed at organisational sustainability. These plans are designed to propel better 
performance in goals one and two which are critical to the entity’s sustainability. This is an area that is 
receiving significant attention. However, I am pleased that there are signs that there is a marked 
improvement in the positioning of Ntinga as a capable special purpose vehicle of government. It is only a 
capable Ntinga armed with the requisite technical acumen which can effect the desired mandate delivery 
outcomes. 

FINANCIAL ACUMEN 

The Board under the astute leadership of the chairperson Sitembele Mase instructed management to 
ensure that available yet limited resources are not only used for the attainment of Ntinga’s formidable 
mandate, but also to build shareholder, funder and public confidence. In this regard, I am pleased with the 
unqualified audit opinion received by Ntinga in the 2018/19 financial year. The attainment of an 
unqualified audit opinion is a demonstration of a state of continuous improvement in the management of 
public assets at Ntinga. However, the organisation is aware that it has to keep a delicate balance between 
its quest for financial sustainability and the demands of its growing development mandate. The agency 
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recognises that true mandate delivery is manifest in a growing and vibrant regional economy 
characterised by a buoyant small business sector.  

STRUCTURED SMME SUPPORT PACKAGES 

As such, the agency continues to offer structured support packages to small business owners which are 
aimed at providing a market for their products. Improved market access is crucial in building sustainable 
small businesses. These support instruments ensure the financial well-being of small businesses and 
their ability to create sustainable jobs. The organisation will therefore place emphasis on cross-sectoral 
support packages which are aimed at building the competitiveness of local small businesses to ensure 
that they are able to compete with their global counterparts. This is important because a sustainable 
regional economy is built on a growing small business sector while it weans itself off a dependence on 
government grant funding support. 

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 

Furthermore, the agency realises that capable human resources lie at the epicentre of building a world-
class organisation. As a result, the agency is engaged in crafting a series of progressive human resources 
policies which recognise and reward exceptional performance. This is a critical element in supporting 
effective and efficient strategy implementation. Ntinga employees should work in an environment in which 
they feel that their expertise and efforts are recognised and rewarded. The human resources unit 
continues to bolster its employee support tools to ensure that staff perform optimally and that they are in a 
state of continuous personal and professional development.  

By the end of the financial year the organisation would have recruited its preferred candidates for the 
vacant critical positions, including the company secretary and head of enterprises. The appointment of 
these senior leaders will bring the required certainty and clarity of purpose within the agency. A total of 13 
posts were filled during the year under review. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

The financial performance of the agency remains sound. However, Ntinga’s trading enterprises are 
projected to stagger their break-even over the  next three to five years. Having used the reserves of the 
entity to prop up operations, the agency requires recapitalisation in order to support the core business. 
The organisation is engaged in continuous conversations with the district municipality in this regard. 

Compared with the 2017/2018 financial year, the agency’s total revenue decreased by R46m (38%) from 
R121.8m to R75.8m in the 2018/19 financial year. Excluding transfers and subsidies as well as transfer of 
assets, Ntinga recorded revenue of R30.6m in the 2018/2019 financial year compared to R21.6 million in 
2017/2018. This translates to a 42% growth in own generated revenue from year-to-year. The positive 
growth in revenue has not yet translated into profitability. The three trading enterprises of the agency are 
still in a loss-making position. This meant they were subsidised by Ntinga’s accumulated cash reserves 
owing to inadequate grant funding.  

From the refurbishment and maintenance of water schemes, the agency generated R10.4m in revenue. 
This is the first financial year that revenue is generated from this source.    
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Grant funding received from the parent municipality for the agency’s operations amounted to R33.8m in 
2018/19 versus R32.8m in 2017/18. 

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

During the period under review, Ntinga placed significant emphasis on ensuring that its subsidiaries are 
financially stable and that they perform at acceptable levels. In the 2018/19 financial year, the Kei Fresh 
Produce Market secured a market agent with a second in the pipeline. The Umzikantu Abattoir continued 
to generate revenue out of slaughter fees. This includes the slaughter of other cattle for sale which were 
received from the Adam Kok Farms.  

With regard to the development of sustainable water services systems, the agency repaired 76 non-
functional water schemes and it assessed a further 58 water schemes. 

An analysis of water consumers was conducted in some areas. Some areas were not assessed as 
planned because community leaders refused to co-operate with social facilitators. Social facilitators were 
denied access to hold a meeting with the community of Link Village by the headman. The community of 
Highbury was unable to convene a meeting due to non-attendance by community leaders. 

 I am also pleased with progress made in the critical area of enhanced and enabled full value chains for 
agricultural produce, markets, abattoirs and aquaculture. For example, a total of 606 livestock units were 
slaughtered at the abattoir. The abattoir generated R7,8 million in revenue in the 2018/19 financial year. A 
total of 764 cattle were produced at the Adam Kok Farms which resulted in R4,6 million in revenue. The 
abattoir is improving the marketing of its products and it is also attending to operational issues such as 
meat classification. 

The farms are implementing custom feeding which should improve the quality of the cattle that is being 
supplied to the abattoir. 

A total of 18 hectares of potatoes were harvested at Adam Kok Farms. This harvest was sold at the Kei 
Fresh Produce Market. 

In addition, two prospective market agents have expressed interest in doing business with the Kei Fresh 
Produce Market in the 2019/20 financial year.  One of the agents is planning to commence trading at the 
beginning of 2019/20.  

Progress is being made in the establishment of diversified partnerships that promote inclusive 
development and growth. In this regard, a new off-take agreement was signed by a customer to buy meat 
from the abattoir.  

Negotiations are also taking place with an investor that intends to implement a renewable energy project 
in the district. 

In 2018/19, two off-take agreements were signed and implemented and two partnership agreements were 
signed with the Small Enterprise development Agency (SEDA) and the Tsolo Agriculture and Rural 
Development Institute (TARDI). 



14	|	P a g e 	
	

Furthermore, three training sessions were held for the benefit of cooperatives. They were in corporate 
governance, fresh hydroponics and Ingquza Maize Project. The O.R. Tambo Cooperatives Development 
Centre (ORTCDC) was also fully-established. A centre manager was employed, a legal entity registered 
and a Board of Directors which was trained on governance issues was established.  

An investment worth more than R89 million was attracted into the ORTDM from the Unemployment 
Insurance Fund (UIF) as a domestic investor in the Labour Action Programme. The investment is 
specifically targeted at skilling, reskilling and labour activation of the former mineworkers within 
O.R. Tambo. 

Ntinga also improved its resolve of building a dynamic, capable and sustainable state-owned company. 
This resolve translated into compliance requirements including budget approval, in-year performance and 
financial reporting being met. A total of 23 Policies and Standard Operating Procedures were reviewed. A 
R1.2m investment income was also collected. I am pleased that although there remains supply chain 
management issues that are being attended to, suppliers are paid on time. In this regard, a threshold of 
50% local procurement was achieved in 2018/19. 

However, the agency continues to experience late payment of water services grant invoices from 
ORTDM. This matter is being addressed with the shareholder.	 

PARTNERSHIPS 

The agency recognises the central role played by its various strategic partners in the fulfilment of the 
Ntinga mandate. The agency relies on the support of third-party partners and funders in order to leverage 
their resources for an improved socio-economic dividend. Ntinga continues to nurture and encourage 
such valuable partnerships by assuming a collaborative and complementary approach in the execution of 
the development agenda. I also recognise Ntinga’s private sector partners who support the work of the 
agency in non-financial terms by providing their technical expertise to improve the competitiveness of our 
small business owners across all priority sectors. The agency also recognises the work of the 
communities it operates in and their support is appreciated.  

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

Moving forward, the organisation will intensify the delivery of its core business in order to enhance its 
effectiveness in exacting its economic impact. As such, greater focus will be placed on building a capable 
cadre of employee whose skills and experience are appropriately matched to the correct roles. This 
should enhance the delivery agenda and improve staff morale.  

Furthermore, the organisation will pay particular attention to its general financial health and that of its 
entities. This is important for long-term sustainability. In addition, Ntinga will continue its engagements 
with the shareholder for the recapitalisation of the agency. The agency is confident that it will receive the 
support it requires from the district.  

 

 



15	|	P a g e 	
	

 

APPRECIATION 

Lastly, I extend my appreciation to the Board of Directors for its insightful leadership acumen and support. 
Its collective wisdom continues to guide the agency toward the intended mandate delivery outcomes. I am 
grateful to the executive management team for their continued and unwavering support. I also thank all 
Ntinga staff for their resilience and dedication to the Ntinga mandate. I also extend my appreciation to all 
Ntinga’s partners who continue to support the agency’s efforts in a challenging development arena. 

 

................................................ 

P.K. Pongwana 

Chief Executive Officer 
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REVIEW 
 

The 2018/19 financial year marks two years since the agency finalised its transition into an SOC and 
implementing the revised mandate. In the past two years, the agency received assets that were 
transferred to it by the parent, the ORTDM. The biggest assets transfers amounting to R62,2 million took 
place in the 2017/18 financial year. In 2018/19, agricultural equipment amounting to R10.7m was 
transferred to Ntinga. 

 

Compared with the 2017/18 financial year, Ntinga’s total revenue decreased by R46m (38%) from 
R121,8 million to R75.8m in the 2018/19 financial year. Excluding transfers and subsidies as well as 
transfer of assets, the 2018/19 financial year revenue amounted to R30.6m compared to R21.6m in 
2017/18. This translates to a 42% growth in own generated revenue from year-to-year. The positive growth 
in revenue has not yet translated into profitability. The three trading enterprises of the entity are still in a 
loss-making position. They were subsequently subsidised using the agency’s accumulated cash reserves 
owing to inadequate grant funding.  

 

From water services work, that is the refurbishment and maintenance of water schemes, the entity 
generated revenue of R10,4 million. This is the first financial year that revenue is generated from this 
source.      

Grant funding received from the parent municipality for the agency’s operations amounted to R33,8 million. 
In the 2017/18 financial year, grant funding was R32,8 million.  
 
During the period under review, total expenditure amounted to R87,8 million compared to R67,2 million in 
2017/18. Staff salaries and wages comprise 47% of total expenditure and 55% of total revenue. During 
the 2018/19 financial year, Ntinga concluded the migration of staff from the old service utility to the SOC. 
This entailed the adjustment of salary packages for certain positions.  
 
Included in expenditure under operational costs, is R7,2 million being the carrying value of orchard trees 
that was derecognised during the year. The other reason for the increase in operational costs is 
expenditure incurred on funded special projects such as the O.R. Tambo Cooperatives Development 
Centre, the Rural Agro-Finance Industry (RAFI) and an agricultural project implemented on behalf of a 
local municipality.     
 
Overall, for the 2018/19 financial year, the agency made a loss before tax of R11,9 million.  
The agency’s total assets remain above its total liabilities. Furthermore, current assets exceed current 
liabilities by R9,8 million.  
 
However, without the deferred tax asset which is not necessarily convertible into cash, the agency’s 
current assets amounted to R17,8 million. With liabilities amounting to R15,2 million, the entity’s net 
current asset position is R2,6 million.  
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Cash and cash equivalents have declined from R30,8 million in the previous year to R6,2 million by the 
end of the 2018/19 financial year. The financial position of the entity has declined when compared to the 
2017/18 financial year. Turnaround or improvement plans are being implemented in order to improve the 
situation. This is particularly true for trading enterprises. However, indications are that it is not going to 
take less than five (5) years before enterprises are self-sustainable. Until then, additional funding ought to 
be secured. To this end, engagements with the parent municipality have commenced. 
 

Financial Overview: Year 2019   

 

 

 

R 

Details Original Budget Adjusted Budget Actual 
Revenue:    

Transfers and Subsidies 

 

27 222 986 29 328 151 34 505 610 

Sale of Goods and 

Rendering of Services 

80 795 913 66 006 318 25 207 731 

Interest on investments 2 500 000 2 500 000 1 155 693 

Donations of Assets - - 10 781 346 

Gains on 

assets adjustments 

50 000 70 000 4 013 157 

Profit / gains on 

disposal of   assets adjustments 

- 40 000 213 286 

Sub-total          110 568 899 97 944 469 75 876 823 

    
Less: Expenditure          109 278 080 97 357 308 87 848 020 
Surplus / (Deficit) 1 290 819 587 161 (11 971 197) 

    

Current Assets 27 286 117 25 684 857 25 085 112 
Non-current Assets 19 991 053 73 128 795 75 534 185 
Total Assets            47 277 170            98 813 652 100 619 297 
Current Liabilities 2 450 000              6 216 973 15 227 850 
Non-current Liabilities - -                                      

- 

- 

Total Liabilities 2 450 000             6 216 973 15 227 850 
    

Net Assets 44 827 170 92 596 679 85 391 447 

 

 

 

Operating Ratios 
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Detail 2018/2019 2017/2018 

Employee Costs 47% 51% 
Repairs and Maintenance 0.8% 0.4% 

 

Operating ratios 

Employee c osts amounted to 47% of the agency’s total expenditure cost. The norm is 
approximately 30%. However, most programmes that are implemented by the agency are labour 
intensive. Furthermore, trading enterprises are not yet operating at their full capacities. With the 
implementation of the strategy, the employee costs ratio is going to improve gradually to the desired 
level.  

Most of the agency’s assets were renewed recently hence the ratio on repairs and maintenance is 
much lower than the norm of approximately 10%. 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

Detail Year 2017 Year 2018 Year 2019 

Original Budget 90 000 12 335 000 9 963 000 

Adjusted Budget 5 588 794 14 998 480 11 124 055 

Actual 1 729 822 5 815 934 8 753 304 
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Capital expenditure 

Capital expenditure relates to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment as well biological assets 
in the form of livestock. Over the past three years, capital expenditure has been increasing steadily. 
This is mainly due to the renewal of infrastructure in trading enterprises.  
 
................................................ 

L. Mbiko 

Chief Financial Officer 
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PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 
 
SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS 

The five-year Corporate Strategy and the Service Delivery Business and Implementation Plan (SDBIP) 
documents for the 2018/19 financial year remain the source documents for the compilation of the annual 
report on performance information of the Ntinga O.R. Tambo Development Agency. 

Performance on the monitoring and evaluation of the implementation of the Ntinga five-year Corporate 
Strategy and the Annual Performance Plan is done through a quarterly reporting system, where individual 
quarterly reports are compiled by management and shared with internal audit to perform the audit 
function.  

The reports are then submitted to the Audit and Risk Committee and they are further transmitted to the 
Board for approval. All four quarterly reports were thereafter submitted to the shareholder (ORTDM). 

The annual report on performance information reflects all the performance indicators and targets as 
depicted in the SDBIP for 2018/19 financial year. 

Ntinga’s strategic plan contains four strategic goals in which all programmes are aligned as highlighted 
here under: 

GOAL 1: Sustainable water services (water supply and sanitation) system. 

GOAL 2: Enhanced and enabled full value chains (upstream & downstream) for agricultural produce, 
markets, abattoirs and aquaculture. 

GOAL 3: Diversified partnerships that promote inclusive socio-economic development and growth. 

GOAL 4: Dynamic, capable and sustainable state-owned company. 

 

Service delivery environment 

The agency has adopted four strategic goals which guide the implementation of its mandate. The 
2018/2019 performance on each of the goals is summarised as follows:  

Strategic Goals (SG) 

2018/19 Annual Targets (Summary of Performance) 

 

Fully or 
Over-
Achieved 

Not 

Achieved 

Total Ntinga 

Annual Targets 

No. % No. % No. % 

1. Sustainable Water Services (water supply and 
sanitation) System. 1 25% 3 75% 4 100% 
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Strategic Goals (SG) 

2018/19 Annual Targets (Summary of Performance) 

 

Fully or 
Over-
Achieved 

Not 

Achieved 

Total Ntinga 

Annual Targets 

No. % No. % No. % 

2. Enhanced and Enabled Full Value Chains 
(upstream & downstream) for Agricultural Produce, 
Markets, Abattoirs and Aquaculture. 

2 22% 7 78% 9 100% 

3. Diversified Partnership that Promote Inclusive 
Socio-economic Development and Growth. 7 87% 1 13% 8 100% 

4. Dynamic, Capable and Sustainable State Owned 
Company. 15 83% 3 17% 18 

100% 

 

TOTAL TARGETS (Fully Achieved & Not  
Achieved) 

25 64% 14 36% 39 100% 

 

Performance Analysis for the Annual Performance Report:  

• The agency had 39 targets planned for the period under review. 
• The agency has achieved overall performance of 64% which is regarded as not good 

performance.  
• The targets that were not achieved were 14 in total (36%). The areas of non-achievement were 

mainly on Goal 1, 2 and Goal 4. 

 

Performance of the agency is summarised as follows: 

Goal 1 - Sustainable Water Services (water supply and sanitation) Systems: 

• There were four targets in Goal 1 that were planned for the 2018/19 financial year. One target was 
achieved, and three targets were not achieved. 

• A water services grant invoice of R4,693,650 (VAT exclusive) was issued to the municipality but it 
had not been paid by the end of the financial year. The payment received for invoices that were 
submitted to ORTDM amounts to R5,785,650. 

• 76 non-functional water schemes were repaired and 58 water schemes were assessed. 
• The analysis of water consumers was conducted in some areas. Some areas were not assessed 

as planned because community leaders refused to cooperate with the social facilitators. Social 
facilitators were denied access to hold a meeting with the community of Link Village by the 
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Headman. The community of Highbury rescheduled their meeting because of non-attendance by 
community leaders. 

  

Goal 2- Enhanced and enabled full value chains (upstream and downstream) for agricultural 
produce, markets, abattoirs and aquaculture. 

• There were nine targets set for the 2018/19 financial year. Two targets were achieved and seven 
targets were not achieved.  

• A combined total of 606 livestock units were slaughtered at the abattoir.  
• The abattoir generated R7,8 million in revenue. 
• 764 cattle were produced at Adam Kok Farms generating revenue of R4,6 million. 
• 18 hectares of potatoes planted at Adam Kok Farms were harvested starting in June 2019.    
• Two prospective market agents have indicated an intention to consider doing business with Ntinga 

"KFPM" in 2019/20. One of the agents is planning to commence trading at the beginning of the 
next financial year.  

• The abattoir is improving its product marketing and it is also addressing operational issues such as 
meat classification.  

• On the side of the farms, custom feeding is being implemented and this will improve the quality of 
cattle that is being supplied to the abattoir. 

 

Goal 3: Diversified partnerships that promote inclusive development and growth. 

• Eight targets were planned for the 2018/19 financial year. Seven targets were achieved and one 
target was not achieved.  

•  Two off-take agreements were signed with customers to buy meat from the abattoir. 
• Negotiations are taking place with an investor that will be implementing an alternative energy 

project in the district. 
• Two off- take agreements were signed and implemented and two partnership agreements were 

signed with SEDA and TARDI. 
• Three training sessions were held for the benefit of co-operatives. They were on corporate 

governance and fresh hydroponics and the Ingquza Maize Project.   
• The ORTCDC was fully established. A centre manager was employed and a legal entity 

registered. A Board of Directors was established and trained on governance issues.  
• An investment worth more than R89 million was attracted into the ORTDM from the 

Unemployment Insurance Fund (UIF) as a domestic investor in the Labour Action Programme.  

Goal 4: Dynamic, capable and sustainable state-owned company (SOC). 

• 18 targets were planned for the 2018/19 financial year. Fifteen targets were achieved while three 
targets were not achieved.  

• Compliance requirements including budget approval, in-year performance and financial reporting 
were met. 

• R1,2 million investment income was collected.  
• There are supply chain management issues that are being attended to.  
• Suppliers are paid on time. 
• Threshold of 50% local procurement was achieved. 
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• Corporate strategy was reviewed. 
• A senior management position was filled. 
• There is effective oversight with the Board of Directors meeting according to its schedule. 
• The agency continues to experience a late payment of water services grant invoices from the 

ORTDM. 
• 23 policies and standard operating procedures were reviewed. 
• 13 posts were filled during the year under review.  

Organisational environment 

During the year under review, the Ntinga Board assessed the progress of the implementation of the five-
year strategy of the agency.  

The Board took a number of resolutions for management to implement to ensure that the entity delivers 
on its mandate and its five-year strategic goals as set out in the five-year strategy (2017/18- 2021/22). 

A diagnostic evaluation and comparison of the Ntinga structure with other SOC’s and developmental 
agencies has been completed and the results thereof submitted to the Human Capital & Remuneration 
Committee, along with possible organisational design options. 

The Human Resource Development (HRD) Strategy, skills audit and organisational design will be 
finalised in line with strategic guidance from the Board. 

 

Key policy developments and legislative changes 

There were no policy developments during the period under review which impacted or impeded Ntinga’s 
mandate, structure or operational activities. 

 

Significant developments 

During the year under review, the organisation finalised its transition from a municipal services entity into 
a state-owned entity.  The Board also finalised the recruitment process for the appointment of a new chief 
executive officer, company secretary and for the head of trading enterprises.  
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2018/2019	ANNUAL	PERFORMANCE	REPORT	

 

 

 
STRATEGIC	GOAL	1	 Sustainable	Water	Services	(water	supply	and	sanitation)	Systems.	

 

Objectives	

Key	Performance	

Indicator	
 

Project	Names	

 
Indicator	

Code	

Interventions/	

Critical	Success	
Factors	

 

Baseline	2017/18	

 
2018/19	Annual	

Performance	Target	

Annual	Target	

 
Actual	Performance	

 
Performance	Variance	&	

Reasons	

 

Corrective	Measure	

 

Means	of	Verification	

 

Custodian	

1.1	Provide	water	related	services	

to	the	per-urban	&	rural	
communities	within	the	
O.R.	Tambo	District	by	
refurbishing	and	maintaining	
schemes.	

1.1.1	Number	of	

assessed,	refurbished	,	

and	Maintained	of	non-	

functional	schemes	in	

KSD	water	schemes.	

Assessment,	

refurbishment	

and				

maintenance	of	

83	water	

schemes	

1_1.1_2_P02	 Assessment,	

refurbishment	and	

maintenance	of	83	

water	schemes	

21	schemes	were	

allocated	to	Ntinga	

during	the	2017/18	

financial	year	

Assessment,	of	58	water	

schemes	and	
Over	Achieved:	58	Water	

Schemes	were	assessed	

2	more	additional	schemes	were	

assessed	,	upon	the	site	

inspection	more	schemes	under	

the	allocated	villages	were	faulty	

which	led	to	more	schemes	to	be	

assessed.	

None.	 *	Job	Cards,	List	of	assessed	

schemes	(Q1-	Q2)	

Head:	Water	

Services	

Refurbishment	and	

Maintenance	of	83	water	

schemes	

Not	Achieved:	44	water	
schemes	refurbished.	

76	water	schemes	
repaired.	

Target	not	achieved	because	of	

non	payment	of	invoices	by	the	

parent	municipality	and	delays	in	

the	supply	chain	management	

processes	

Ntinga	Management	must	meet	

with	ORTDM	Management	and	

discuss	the	delays	in	the	

payment	of	invoices.	The	delays	

in	the	supply	chain	management	

processes	were	discussed	and	

resolved	in	the	management	

meeting.The	meeting	with	

ORTDM	will	take	
place	before	the	end	of	the	

*	Job	Cards	and	List	of	

refurbished	water	

Schemes.	(Q1-	Q4)	

Head:	Water	

Services	

1.1.2	 Analysis	 of	

consumers	(metered	and	

un-metered)	in	the	peri-	

urban	and	rural	areas	

P04	Rural	Billing	 1_1.1_4_P04	 Identification	of	water	

services	and	users	and	

use	patterns	in	Peri	

Urban	Areas	of	KSD.	

Phase	1	Analysis	of	

consumers	in	peri	

urban	areas	of	Pyane,	

Chris	Hani,	and	

Mandela	Park	has	

been	done.	

Phase	two	analysis	of	

consumers	in	periurban	

areas	of	Joe	Slovo,	

Payne,Mandela	Park,	

Fairfield,	Zimbane	and	

Qweqwe,	KwaLindile,	

Mpheko,	KwaLink,	&	

Highbury	to	be	done	by	

30	June	2019.	

Not	Achieved:	Phase	2	analysis	
was	done	at	Joe	Slovo,	Payne	

Farm,	Mandela	Park,	Chris	Hani,	

Fairfield,	Qweqwe,	Kwa-Lindile	

and	Mpheko	

Target	not	achieved	because	

the	communities	leaders	are	

refusing	to	cooperate	with	the	

Social	Facilitators.	Phase	1	

Analysis	of	consumers	in	peri	

urban	areas	of	Pyane,	Chris	Hani,	

and	Mandela	Park	has	been	

done.	

Further	consultation	with	the	

Headman	and	the	ward	councillor	

has	been	arranged	in	order	to	

break	the	deadlock.	

*	Analysis	report	
*	Attendance	Registers	  

Head:	Water	

Services	

1.1.3	 Revenue	

generated	by	the	Water	

Services	Department	from	

maintenance	and	water	

billing	

Revenue	

generation	

 Revenue	generated	

by	the	Business	unit	
R1,937,878.00	 R17,043,478	 Not	Achieved:	R5,785,650	has	

been	paid.	An	invoice	of	R4	,693	

650	has	not	been	paid.	

Target	not	achieved	because	of	

non	payment	of	invoices	by	the	

parent	municipality	

Ntinga	Management	must	meet	

with	ORTDM	Management	and	

discuss	the	delays	in	the	

payment	of	invoices.	The	

meeting	with	ORTDM	will	take	

place	before	
the	end	of	the	1st	quarter	of	

Invoices	submitted	to	

ORTDM.	

Head:	Water	

Services	

NTINGA	O.R.	TAMBO	DEVELOPMENT	AGENCY	SOC	LTD	
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STRATEGIC	GOAL	2	 Enhanced	and	Enabled	Full	Value	Chains	(upstream	and	downstream)	for	Agricultural	Produce,	Markets,	Abattoir	and	Aquaculture	
 
 

Strategic	Objectives	

 

Key	Performance	

Indicator	

 
 
Project	Names	

 

Indicator	

Code	

 
 

Interventions	

 
 

Baseline	2016/17	

 

2018/19	Annual	

Performance	Target	

 

Annual	Target	

Actual	Performance	

 

Performance	Variance	&	

Reasons	

 
 

Corrective	Measure	

 
 

Means	of	Verification	

 
 

Custodian	

2.1	Improve	productivity	and	

profitability	of	Umzikantu	
Abattoir	by	30	June	2020.	

2.1.1	 Number	 of	

livestock	 units	

slaughtered	 for	

communities,	butcheries	

and	other	

 
P09	Abattoir	

Private	

Slaughter	

 
 
2_2.1_1_P09	

-	Refurbishment	and	

continuous	

maintenance	of	

abattoir	infrastructure	

and	facilities.	

-	Production	

and	marketing	of	red	

meat	(cattle,	sheep,	

goats	&	pigs)	carcasses	

and	offal,	locally	and	

beyond.	
-	

Utilisation	of	abattoir	

for	slaughtering	

incrementally	towards	

full	capacity.	

167.3	Units	 550	Livestock	units	

slaughtered	for	

communinities,	

butcheries	and	others	

Over	Achieved:	606.42	units	
slaughtered	 for	

communinities,	butcheries	and	
others	

56.42	Units	more	slaughtered	for	

communities,	butcheries	and	

others.	

Not	Applicable	 Batch	 control	

documents.	
 

Head:	Trading	

Enterprises	

2.1.2	 Number	 of	

livestock	 units	

slaughtered	for	sale,	

towards	abattoir	full	

capacity	

 
 
 

P10	Abattoir	

Own	Livestock	
Slaughter	

 
 
 
 
2_2.1_2_P10	

175.5	Units	 1497	Livestock	units	

slaughtered	for	meat	

sales	towards	abattoir	

full	capacity	

Not	Achieved:	639.25	Livestock	
units	slaughtered	for	meat	sales	

towards	abattoir	full	capacity	

857.75	 less	 livestock	 units	

slaughtered	 for	 meat	 sales	

towards	 abattoir	 full	 capacity.	

We	have	not	tapped	into	retail	as	

we	do	not	fully	comply	with	their	

requirements	

Intensify	 marketing	 	 to	

accommodate	retail	and	

wholesale.	Finalise	the	issue	of

	 Classifying	 and	

Grading.Classification	and	

grading	will	happen	in	the	

second	quarter	in	2019	20	

financial	year	(30	 October	
2019)	

Batch	 control	

documents.	
 
 
 

Head:	Trading	

Enterprises	

2.1.3	 Revenue	

generated	from	meat	sales	

and	slaughter	fees	

 
 

P11	Abattoir	

Meat	Sales	

 
 

2_2.1_3_P11	

R2	690	972.17	 R18	557	000	Revenue	

generated	from	meat	sales	

and	slaughter	fees	

Not	 Achieved:	 R7	 848	 902.00	
Revenue	 generated	 from	 meat	

sales	and	slaughter	fees	

R10	708	098.00	was	not	

generatedf	from	meat	sales	and	

slaughter	fees.	We	have	not	

tapped	into	retail	as	we	do	not	

fully	comply	with	their	

requirements	

Intensify	 marketing	 to	

accommodate	retail	and	

wholesale.	Finalise	the	issue	of	

Classifying	and	Grading	

 
 

Financial	Reports	

 
 
Head:	Trading	

Enterprises	

2.2	Improve	functionality	and	

viability	of	Kei	Fresh	Produce	
Market	(KFPM)	by	initially	
focusing	and	targeting	
linkages	of	fruit	and	vegetable	
industry	supply	chains	by	30	
June	2020.	

2.2.1	 Tonnage	 of	

agricultural	produce	sold	

by	Market	Agents	

 
 
 
 

P14	Fresh	
Produce	Market	

tonnage	

 
 
 
 
 
2_2.2_1_P14	

- Refurbishment	and	

continuous	

maintenance	of	

Market	infrastructure	

and	facilities.	

 
- Recruitment	of	

competent	Market	

Agents	towards	full	

capacity	of	the	Market.	

 
- Encourage	aggressive	
marketing	and	sale	of	

fresh	produce	(fruit	and	

vegetables)	locally	and	
beyond	by	Market	

Agents.	

2	012	Tons	 19	742	Tons	of	agricultural	

produce	sold	by	Market	

Agents	by	30	June	2019	

Not	Achieved:	 1	

853.50	Tons	of	agricultural	

produce	sold	by	Market	Agent	

from	Q1	to	Q4	of	2018-19	

Underperformed	by	17	889	Tons	

of	agricultural	fresh	produce	that	

was	supposed	to	be	sold	by	

Market	Agents	by	30	June	2019.	

Currently,	there	is	1	market	

agent	and	is	under	performing	in	

terms		of	bringing	in	produce	and	

pushing	sales.	

Efforts	are	in	place	to	attract	

three	more	market	agents	to	

KFPM	who	will	bring	stability	in	

terms	of	tonnage	of	agricultural	

fresh	produce	and	revenue	

generation.	

Classification	 and	 grading	 will	

happen	in	the	second	quarter	in	

2019	20	financial	year	(30	
October	2019)	

 
 
 
 

Freshmark	System	

monthly	reports.	

 
 
 
 
Head:	Trading	

Enterprises	

2.2.2	 Revenue	

generated	from	5%	

commission	of	agricultural	

produce	sold	

 
 

P16	Fresh	

Produce	Market	

Commission	

 
 
 

2_2.2_3_P16	

R409,	462.39	
Revenue	generated	
for	2017/2018	

R5	850	000	revenue	

generated	from	

commision	on	agricultural	

produce	sold	by	30	June	
2019	

Not	Achieved:	 R247,	
262.55	Revenue	generated	from	

agricultural	produce	sold	by	

Market	Agent	from	Q1	to	Q4	of	

2017-18	

Underperformed	by	R5	602,	273	

(5%	Commission	that	

wassupposed	to	be	generated	

from	agricultural	produce	sold).	
Currently,	there	is	1	market	

agent	and	is	under	performing	in	

terms	of	
bringing	in	produce	and	

 
 
 

Freshmark	System	

monthly	reports.	

 
 
 
Head:	Trading	

Enterprises	

2.2.3	Optimise	utilisation	of	

KFPM	floor	space	

P17	Fresh	

Produce	Market	

Profitability	

2_2.2_4_P17	 1	Market	Agent	

Trading	at	KFPM	

Securing	of	3	additional	

Market	Agents	
Not	Achieved:	 1	out	

of	3	market	agents	have	been	

secured	but	failed	to	do	business.	

The	Agent	only	traded	for	1	

month	and	15	days.	The	Market	

remains	with	1	market	agent	on	

the	floor.	

Fenato	Market	Agent	(BEE)	only	

traded	for	1	month	and		15	days	

on	the	market	floor	and	ran	

away.	Attempts	to	talk	to	them	

were	unsuccessful.	

 
 
 

Freshmark	System	
monthly	reports.	

 
 
 

Head:	Trading	
Enterprises	

2.3	Utilise	Adam	Kok	Farms	as	a	
primary	production	hub	

for	agricultural	produce	

2.3.1	 Number	 of	 cattle	

produced	 and	 sold	 to	

Umzikantu	 Abattoir	 and	

other	markets	

 
 
 
 

P20	Adam	Kok	
Livestock	Sales	

 
 
 
 
 
2_2.3_2_P20	

- Purchase,	condition	
(for	a	maximum	of	100	

days)	and	distribute	

cattle	for	Umzikantu	

Abattoir	(starting	with	

50%	of	requirements	in	

2017/18)	and	beyond.	
- Heifer	Exchange	
Programme	
-Livestock	Trade	Fair	

516	Cattle	produced	

and	sold	

700	Cattle	produced	and	

sold	and	R7	Million	

generated	

Over-achieved	on	number	of	
cattle:	 764	cattle	

produced	and	sold.	

Not	Achieved	on	
revenue:	 R4	625	
903	generated	

64	more	cattle	produced	and	

sold.	

R2	374	097	less	generated.	

Beef	prices	dramatically	dropped	

during	and	after	the	foot	and	

mouth	disease	outbreak	in	

Limpopo	from	November	2018.	
The	Outbreak	did	not	happen	at	

Adam	Kok	Farms	but	at	
Limpopo,	that	affected	the	

None:	This	was	a	national	

crisis.	
 
 
 
 
 

Livestock	sales	invoices.	

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Head:	Trading	
Enterprises	
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STRATEGIC	GOAL	2	 Enhanced	and	Enabled	Full	Value	Chains	(upstream	and	downstream)	for	Agricultural	Produce,	Markets,	Abattoir	and	Aquaculture	
 
 

Strategic	Objectives	

 

Key	Performance	

Indicator	

 
 
Project	Names	

 

Indicator	

Code	

 
 

Interventions	

 
 

Baseline	2016/17	

 

2018/19	Annual	

Performance	Target	

 

Annual	Target	

Actual	Performance	

 

Performance	Variance	&	

Reasons	

 
 

Corrective	Measure	

 
 

Means	of	Verification	

 
 

Custodian	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

 2.3.2	 Revenue	

generated	from	livestock	

(cattle)	produce	and	sold	to	

Umzikantu	Abattoir	and	

other	markets	

  
 
 
 

2_2.3_3_P21	

-	Cattle	Branding	 None.	 New	

Target	

1497	Cattle	supplied	to	

Umzikantu	Abattoir	
Not	Achieved:	464	cattle	
supplied	to	Umzikantu	Abattoir	

1032	 less	 cattle	 supplied	 -	 the	

supply	was	as	per	the	demand	of	

Umzikantu	Abattoir.	

Umzikantu	Abattoir	to	work	on	

problems	that	led	to	low	

demand	

 
 
Livestock	sales	invoices.	

 

2.3.4	 Number	 of	

hectares	utilised	for	crop	

production	

None.	 New	

Target	

18	hectares	utilised	for	

crop	production	
Fully	Achieved	-	18	Hectares	
utilised	for	crop	production	

Not	applicable	 Not	applicable	
* Crop	production	plan.	
* Crop	Sales	Invoice	
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STRATEGIC	GOAL	3	 Diversified	Partnerships	that	Promote	Inclusive	Socio-economic	Development	and	Growth.	
 

Strategic	Objectives	

Key	Performance	

Indicator	
 

Project	Names	

 
Indicator	

Code	

 

Interventions	

 

Baseline	2017/18	

 
2018/19	Annual	

Performance	Target	

Annual	Target	
 
 

Actual	Performance	

 
Performance	Variance	and	

Reasons	

 

Corrective	Measure	

 

Means	of	Verification	

 

Custodian	

3.1	Optimize	linkages	of	meat	

industry	value	chain	that	
enhance	functionality	of	
Umzikantu	Abattoir	by	30	June	
2020.	

3.1.1	Number	of	signed	

and	 implemented	

partnership	agreements	

that	 	 enhance	

functionality	 of	

Umzikantu	Abattoir	

P25	Abattoir	

Strategic	

Partnerships	

2_3.1_1_P25	 -	Establish	and	

maintain	partnerships	

with	livestock	(cattle,	

sheep	and	pigs)	

producers,	marketers	

and/or	speculators.	

 
- Facilitate	off-take	

agreements	with	

wholesalers	and	public	

entities	like	Correctional	

Services,	Hospitals,	etc.	

 
- Facilitate	off-take	

agreements	for	hides	

and	skins.	

 
-	Establish	partnerships	
with	meat	hawkers	for	
sale	of	offal,	feet	and	

1	 Partnership	

Agreement	

1	Partnership	agreement	

signed	and	implemented.	
Fully	Achieved	:	1	signed	
partnership	agreement	with	

TARDI	

None	 None	  
* Minutes	 and	

Attendance	Register	

(Q1+	Q2).	

 
* Signed	Partnership	

Agreement.(Q3).	

 
* Implementation	

Head:	Trading	

Enterprises	

3.1.2	Number	of	signed	and

	 implemented	 off-	

take	agreements	for	sale	of	

meat	from	Umzikantu	

Abattoir.	

None.	New	Target	 2	Off-take	agreement	signed	

and	implemented.	
Fully	Achieved:	2	Off-take	
agreement	signed	and	

implemented.	

None	 None	 * Attendance	Register	&	
Minutes	(Q1	=	Q2).	

 
* Signed	 Off-take	
Agreement	(Q3+Q4)	

Head:	Trading	

Enterprises	

3.2	 Optimize	linkages	of	fruit	
and	vegetable	industry	value	
chain	in	support	of	Kei	Fresh	

Produce	Market	by	30	June	2020.	

3.2.1	Number	of	signed	
and	implemented	
partnerships	agreements	

that	enhance	functionality	

of	Kei	Fresh	Produce	

Market.	

P26	Fresh	
Produce	Market	
Strategic	

Partnerships	

2_3.2_2_P26	 -	Develop	and	
maintain	partnerships	
with	Local	Municipalities	
to	assist	local	farmers	to	
produce	and	supply	the	
KFPM.	

1	Partnership	
Agreement	signed	

1	Partnership	agreement	
signed	

Fully	Achieved:	1	Partnership	
agreement	signed	between	

NTINGA	and	SEDA	as	

facilitated	in	Q1.	

None	 None	  
 
Head:	Trading	

Enterprises	

3.3	Optimize	linkages	of	a	
rapid	livestock	production	
industry	value	chain	that	
enhance	functionality	of	Adam	
Kok	Farms	by	30	June	2020	

3.3.1	Number	of	signed	
and	 implemented	
partnership	agreements	

that	 	 enhance	

functionality	of	Adam	Kok	

Farms.	

P29	Adam	Kok	
Farms	Strategic	
Partnerships	

2_3.3_3_P29	 Develop	and	maintain	
partnerships	that	
enhance	functionality	

of	Adam	Kok	Farms.	

Roll	out	the	heifer	

exchange	programme	

with	local	municipalities	

1	Partnership	
Agreement	

1	Partnership	Agreement	
signed	and	implemented.	

Fully	Achieved:	1	Partnership	
agreement	signed	between	

NTINGA	and	TARDI	

None	 None	 * Signed	Minutes	and	

Attendance	Register.	

(Q1+Q2).	

 
* Signed	Partnership	
Agreement.(Q3)	

 
*Implementation	

Progress	Report	(Q4)	

 
 
 

Divisional	Head:	

Trading	Enterprises	

3.4.5	number	of	new	

Domestic	 Investors	

attracted	into	O.R.	Tambo	

region	

Investment	

Promotion	and	

Facilitation	

 1	New	Domestic	investor	

attracted	into	
O.R.	Tambo	region	

None.	New	Target	 1	New	Domestic	investor	

attracted	into	O.R.	Tambo	

region	

Fully	Achieved:	Investment	
worth	more	than	R89	million	

was	attracted	into	ORTDM	from	

the	UIF	as	a	domestic	investor	in	

Labour	Action	Programme.	

None	 Not	Applicable	 *	Signed	Minutes	&	
*Attendance	Register	

(Q1	+Q2).	

 
*	Domestic	Investment	

Faciliation	Report(Q3).	

 
*	Signed	Agreement	(Q4)	

 
 
 

Chief	Executive	
Officer	

3.5	Develop,	Support	and	

promote	SMMEs	as	a	catalyst	
for	economic	development,	
growth	and	innovation	by	30	
June	2021	

3.5.1	Provide	Training	and	

Skills	development	to	 the

	 SMME's,	

Cooperatives	 and	

Targeted	groups	within	

the	region	

UIF	Training	

and	Skills	

Development	

 Number	of	training	

interventions	provided	

to	the	SMM's,	

Cooperatives,	ex-mine	

workers,	military	

veterans,	unemployed	

youth,	women	and	

disabled	

None.	New	Target	 3	training	sessions	provided	

for	the	SMM's,	

Cooperatives,	ex-	mine	

workers,	military	veterans,	

unemployed	youth,	women	

and	disabled	

Fully	Achieved:	3	Training	
interventions	took	place	in	

respect	of	(1)	O.R.	Tambo	Co-	

operatives	Movement	Leadership	

support	in	matters	of	co-op	

governance,	(2)	Hydrophonics	

development	and	management,	

and	(3)	under	the	Ingquza	Hill	

Project	Ntinga	facilitated	access	

by	12	project	members	to	a	

Training	by	Chippa	Training	

Academy.	

None	 Not	Applicable	 PMO	quarterly	reports	 Manager:	PMO	
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STRATEGIC	GOAL	3	 Diversified	Partnerships	that	Promote	Inclusive	Socio-economic	Development	and	Growth.	
 

Strategic	Objectives	

Key	Performance	

Indicator	
 

Project	Names	

 
Indicator	

Code	

 

Interventions	

 

Baseline	2017/18	

 
2018/19	Annual	

Performance	Target	

Annual	Target	
 
 

Actual	Performance	

 
Performance	Variance	and	

Reasons	

 

Corrective	Measure	

 

Means	of	Verification	

 

Custodian	

3.6	Develop,	Support	and	

Empower	Co-operatives	as	
Catalyst	for	Economic	

Development	and	Growth	and	
innovation	by	30	June	2021	

3.6.1	Establishment	of	an	

effective	and	fully	

functional	O.R.	Tambo	

Cooperative	

Development	 Centre	

(ORTCDC)	

O.R.	Tambo	

CDC	

 ORTCDC	 Interim	Steering	

Committee	in	place	

chaired	by	the	Ntinga	

CEO	

Establishment	of	an	

effective	and	fully	

functional	O.R.	Tambo	

Cooperative	

Development	Centre	

(ORTCDC)	

Fully	Achieved:	ORTCDC	has	
been	established	-	(1)	

workstation	established,	(2)	

Centre	Manager	employed,	(3)	

legal	entity	registered,	(4)	board	

of	directors	established	and	

trained	on	governance	issues,	

and	(5)	a	Cooperatives	incubation	

programme	
commenced	

N/A	 N/A	 ORTCDC	quarterly	

reports	
Manager:	PMO	

3.6.2	Number	of	new	

sustainable	Cooperatives	

facilitated	and	supported	

O.R.	Tambo	

CDC	
2_3.2_4_P28	 - Facilitate	and	

promote	

entrepreneurship	

development	and	

innovation.	

 
- Facilitate	SMME	
/Cooperative	

None.	New	Target	 14	new	sustainable	

SMME's	supported	
Not	Achieved:No	Support	
given	to	14	SMME's	

None	of	the	14	SMMEs	

received	support.	The	

Harmony	Gold	Funded	

Enterprise	Development	

Centre	Project	under	which	

the	SMMEs	would	be	

supported	stalled.	

Ntinga	has	on-going	discussions	

with	relevant	stakeholders	to	

unlock	the	project,	and	

alternative	sources	for	funding	of	

SMMEs	are	being	explored.	

ORTCDC	and	PMO	
quarterly	reports	

Manager:	PMO	
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STRATEGIC	GOAL	4	 Dynamic,	Capable	and	Sustainable	State	Owned	Company.	

 
Strategic	Objectives	

Key	Performance	

Indicator	
 
Project	Names	

 
Indicator	

Code	

 
Interventions	

 
Baseline	2017/18	

 
2018/19	Annual	

Performance	Target	

Annual	Target	

Actual	Performance	

 
Performance	Variance	and	

Reasons	

 
Corrective	Measure	

 
Means	of	Verification	

 
Custodian	

4.1	Ensure	Business	Processes,	
Tools	and	Systems	that	support	

implementation	of	the	Strategy	
and	continued	viability	of	the	
organisation	by	30	June	2021.	

4.1.1	Sound	Financial	

Management	and	

Accurate	reporting	

P30	Financial	

Management,	

Systems	and	

Reforms	

3_4.1_1_P30	 -	Financial	

management	and	

reporting.	

-	Supply	Chain	

Management	reforms	

and	Oversight.	
-	Asset	

Management.	

Draft	annual	budget	

prepared	for	Board	

approval	and	

submission	to	the	

parent	municipality	

by	31	January	each	
year.	

2019/2020	proposed	budget	

approved	by	the	Board	of	

Directors	and	submitted	to	

the	parent	municipality	by	

31	
January	2019.	

Fully	Achieved:	2019/2020	
proposed	budged	approved	by	

Board	of	Directors	and	submitted	

to	the	parent	municipality	by	31	

January	2019.	

None	 Not	Applicable	 *Board	resolution	and	
*Proof	of	submission	to	
parent	municipality	

Chief	Financial	

Officer	

Final	annual	budget	

approved	by	Board	by	

31	May	each	year.	

Board	approved	Credible	

final	budget	by	31	May	

2019	

Fully	Achieved:	2019/2020	Final	
budget	approved	by	Board	of	

Directors	by	31	May	2019	

None	 Not	Applicable	 *	Proof	of	budget	

submission	to	parent	

municipality.	
*Approved	2019/2020	
*Budget	/	Board	

Chief	Financial	

Officer	

Monthly	budget	

control	reports	

prepared	within	7	

working	days	after	

the	end	of	every	

month.	

Monthly	budget	reports	

submitted	to	the	parent	

municipality	within	7	

working	days	after	the	

end	of	every	month.	

Fully	Achieved:	Monthly	budget	

reports	submitted	to	the	parent	

municipality	within	7	working	

days	after	the	end	of	every	

month.	

None	 Not	Applicable	 Monthly	and	quarterly	

reports	approved	by	

Accounting	Officer.	

Chief	Financial	

Officer	

Quarterly	finance	

reports	prepared	

within	30	days	after	

the	end	of	the	

quarter.	

Quarterly	finance	reports	

submitted	to	the	Board	

within	30	days	after	the	

end	of	the	quarter.	

Fully	Achieved:	Quarterly	
finance	reports	submitted	to	the	

Board	within	30	days	after	the	

end	of	the	quarter.	

None	 Not	Applicable	 * Board	resolution	
* Quarterly	finance	
reports.	

Chief	Financial	

Officer	

Board	of	Directors	

adopted	Mid-year	

budget	&	performance	

assessment	report	with	

recommendations	

Mid-year	budget	&	

performance	

assessment	report	with	

recommendations	

submitted	to	Board	of	

Directors	by	20	

Mid-year	budget	&	

performance	assessment	

report	submitted	to	

Board	of	Directors	by	20	

January	2019.	

Fully	Achieved:	Mid-year	budget	
&	performance	assessment	

report	submitted	to	Board	of	

Directors	by	20	January	2019.	

None	 Not	Applicable	 Mid-year	assessment	

report.	

Chief	Financial	

Officer	

- Review	 of	 finance	
related	 policies	 and	

standard	 operating	

procedures	(SOP).	

-	 Clean	

administration.	

- Audit	 of	 Annual	

Financial	Statements.	

-	Responding	to	A-	G	

Queries.	
-	

Turnaround	strategy	

Audit	Action	Plan	to	

resolve	audit	queries	

developed	

Develop	 audit	 action	

plan	 to	 resolve	 audit	

queries	

Fully	Achieved:	Audit	action	
plan	to	resolve	audit	queries	

developed.	

None	 Not	Applicable	 Audit	Action	Plan	 Chief	Financial	

Officer	

Unqualified	audit	

report	

Obtain	unqualified	audit	

report	from	Auditor	

General	

Fully	Achieved:	Unqualified	
audit	report	obtained	from	

Auditor	General	for	the	

2017/2018	financial	year.	

None	 Not	Applicable	 Audit	Report	 Chief	Financial	

Officer	

4.1.2	Rand	Value	of	investment	

income	collected	

  100%	collection	of	

budgeted	revenue.	
R2	070	950	
investment	income	

collected.	

R2.5m	investment	

income	collected.	
Not	Achieved:	R1.2m	

investment	income	collected.	

R1.3m	of	the	projected	

investment	income	(interest)	

could	not	be	collected	due	to	

non-realisation	of	anticipated	

revenue.	Set	revenue	targets	

were	not	achieved.	

Turnaround	plans	have	been	

developed	and	are	being	

implemented	in	order	to	

improve	revenue	generation.	

Investment	register	 Chief	Financial	

Officer	

4.1.3	Annual	Financial	

Statements	submitted	to	

Auditor	General	by	31	

August	

  - Preparation	of	

credible	ledger	accounts	

up	to	Statement	of	

Financial	
Position.	

 
- Submission	of	
Annual	Financial	
Statements	to	the	
Audit	and	Risk	

Annual	Financial	

Statements	submitted	

to	Auditor	General	by	

31	
August.	

Annual	Financial	Statements	

submitted	to	Auditor	

General	by	31	August	2018.	

Fully	Achieved:	Annual	Financial	
Statements	submitted	to	Auditor	

General	by	31	August	2018.	

None	 Not	Applicable	 Signed	AFS	and	Proof	of	

Submission.	

Chief	Financial	

Officer	

Suppliers	 paid	 within	

30	 days	 from	 date	 of	

invoice.	

100%	of	suppliers	paid	

within	30	days	from	date	

of	invoice	

Fully	Achieved:	100%	of	
suppliers	paid	within	30	days	

from	the	date	of	invoice	receipt	

by	the	Entity.	

None	 Not	Applicable	 Supplier	payment	

vouchers.	

Chief	Financial	

Officer	

4.1.5	%Procurement	
Done	with	local	suppliers	

  Compile	Annual	
Procurement	Plan	and	

SCM	Report	

35%	of	Procurement	
done	with	local	

suppliers	

50%	of	Procurement	
done	with	local	suppliers	

Fully	Achieved:	50%	of	
Procurement	done	with	local	

suppliers	

None	 Not	Applicable	 SCM	Paragraph	6	
reports.	

Chief	Financial	
Officer	
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STRATEGIC	GOAL	4	 Dynamic,	Capable	and	Sustainable	State	Owned	Company.	

 
Strategic	Objectives	

Key	Performance	

Indicator	
 
Project	Names	

 
Indicator	

Code	

 
Interventions	

 
Baseline	2017/18	

 
2018/19	Annual	

Performance	Target	

Annual	Target	

Actual	Performance	

 
Performance	Variance	and	

Reasons	

 
Corrective	Measure	

 
Means	of	Verification	

 
Custodian	

            

4.	1.7	Annual	Review	of	

the	Strategic	Plan	

P32	Corporate	

Governance	

4_4.1_2_P33	 Review	Strategic	Goals	

and	Objectives	

 
Risk	Management	
review	Register/	top	
ten	strategic	risks	

Annual	review	of	

strategic	plan	by	May	

2019	

Reviewed	and	Board	

approved	corporate	strategy	

by	31	May	2019	

Fully	Achieved:	the	Ntinga	
Strategic	Plan	was	reviewed	in	

May	2019	and	approved	by	the	

Board	

None	 Not	Applicable	 Signed	reviewed	Strategy	  
 

Chief	Executive	

Officer	

4.1.8	Number	of	
compliance	reports	

P33	Legal	
Compliance	

4_4.1_2_P33	 -	Number	of	
performance	reports	

submitted	to	the	

relevant	stakeholders	

4	Quarterly	
Performance	reports,	

1	midterm	

Performance	

assessment	report	
and	1	annual	

Performance	report	

Four	quarterly	
performance	,	one	
Midterm		report	submitted	
and	Annual	Performance	
Report	and	Annual	Report	
submitted	to	Auditor	
General	to	the	Board,	
Parent	Municipality	and	to	
the	

Fully	Achieved:	1st	Quarter,	
2nd	Quarter,	Midterm,	3rd	
Quarter	and	4th	Quarter	

Performance	Report	was	

submitted	to	the	Board	of	

Directors	

None	 Not	Applicable	 * Proof	of	Submission	
*Performance	reports	

* Board	Minutes	

 
 
 

Chief	Executive	
Officer	

4.1.9	Implementation	of	
Performance		Management	

Systems,	monitoring	and	

evaluation	

P32	Corporate	
Governance	

4_4.1_2_P33	 Number	Monthly	
Senior	Management	and	

Extended	Management	

Meetings	

Monthly	Senior	
Management	and	

Extended	

Management	

Meetings	

12	Monthly	Senior	
Management	Meetings	

Over	Achieved:	16	
Management	Committee	
Meetings	were	held	for	the	

2018/2019	Financial	Year	

4	Extra	meeting	were	held	,	
these	extra	meetings	were	held	

for	operational	reasons.	

Not	Applicable	 * Attendance	registers,	
* Signed	Minutes.	

 
 

Chief	Executive	

Officer	

4.1.10	Number	of	Board	

and	Board	Committee	
Meetings	attended	

P32	Corporate	

Governance	
4_4.1_2	
_P33	

-Number	of	Board	

meetings	

- Number	of	

ARC	meetings	-	

Number	of	HRRC	

meetings	

- Number	of	

SDIC	meetings	-	

Ntinga	Annual	

General	Meeting	

Board	Meetings	

ARC	Meetings	

HRRC	Meetings	

SDIC	Meetings	

Annual	General	

Meeting	

Shareholders	

Meetings	

-	5	Board	meetings	

 
  

Over	Achieved:	6	Board	
Meetings	were	held	for	the	

period	under	review	

1	More	Board	meeting	was	held	

to	finalise	the	recruitment	for	

CEO	and	Senior	Manager	
:Trading	Enterprises	

Not	Applicable	 * Attendance	Registers	
* Signed	Minutes	

 
 

Company	Secretary	

 * 6	ARC	Meetings	
* 4	HRRC	Meetings	

* 4	SDIC	Meetings	

* 2	SEC	Meetings	

Not	Achieved:	7	
ARC	Meeting	
3 HRRC	
4 SDIC	
2	SEC	

1	HRRC	Meeting	was	not	held	

due	to	lack	of	quorum	

The	HRRC	Meeting	was	held	in	

the	1st	quarter	of	the	new	
financial	year(2019/2020)	

* Attendance	Registers	
* Signed	Minutes	  

 
 

Company	Secretary	

	 	

	

STRATEGIC	GOAL	4	 Dynamic,	Capable	and	Sustainable	State	Owned	Company.	

 
Strategic	Objectives	

Key	Performance	

Indicator	
Project	Names	

Indicator	
Code	

 
Interventions	

 
Baseline	2017/18	

2018/19	Annual	

Performance	Target	

Annual	Target	

Actual	Performance	

Performance	Variance	&	

Reasons	

 
Corrective	Measure	

 
Means	of	Verification	

Custodian	

  

4.2	Create	and	Maintain	
administrative	capacity	

through	recruitment,	PMS	and	
good	governance	for	effective	

and	functioning	of	SOC	

4.2.1	Number	of	policies	

and	SOPs	reviewed	

Review	of	

policies	and	

SOP	

 Review	of	policies	and	

SOP	

4	Policies	reviewed	

in	2017/18	

11	Review	all	policies	

and	SOPs	by	30	

September	2018	

Over	Achieved:	In	Total	22	
Policies	were	reviewed	and	SOPs	

by	30	September	2018.	However	

1	Policy	was	repealed	by	the	

Board	and	it	does	not	form	part	

policy	

There	 was	 a	 need	 to	 develop	

new	 policies	 due	 Operational	

requirements.	

None	 Reviewed	policies.	Board	

Resolution	.	
Policy	Handbook	

Head:	Corporate	

Services	

4.2.5	Number	of	budgeted	

vacant	posts	filled	

Filling	of	Critical	

funded	posts	

 Recruitment	of	critical	

posts	

Number	of	vacations	

posts	filled	
12	budgeted	posts	filled	 Not	Achieved:	11	posts	were	

filled	during	the	year	under	

review	

1	position	was	put	on	hold	due	

budget	constraints,	however	the	

recruitment	was	done	and	

finalised	and	incumbent	

appointed	in	June	2019.	

The	incumbent	has	started	on	

duty	as	from	01	August	2019	
Appointment	Letters	 Head:	Corporate	

Services	
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PART C: HUMAN RESOURCES  
Introduction 

The agency’s organisational structure has a total of 157 positions of which 128 were budgeted 
for. Of these positions, 124 were filled by the end of the 2018/19 financial year. This 
represents a staff vacancy rate of 3%.  All posts in the organisational structure have been 
evaluated using the Paterson Job Grading System and the results were implemented in 
November 2018. The agency has a new wage curve. 
 
There was no suspension of staff. However, there was one case of financial misconduct which 
affected three employees. They have all pleaded guilty and they have agreed to repay the 
amount. No performance awards were made. 
 
Employee totals, turno ver and vacancies 
 

Employees 

2018/2019 FY 

Description 2018/2019 
No. of employees 

No. of 
Approved Posts 

No. of filled 
posts 

No.  of 
vacancies 

Vacancy rate 
(%) 

Chief Executive 
Officer 

0 1 0 1 100 

Chief Financial 
Officer 

1 1 1 0 0 

Company 
Secretary 

0 1 0 1 100 

Senior Manager 
Corporate Services 

1 1 1 0 0 

Senior Manager 
Trading 
Enterprises 

0 1 0 1 100 

Water Systems 

Engineer Services 

1 1 1 0 0 

Water Services 20 36 20 16 44 

Trading  enterprise 
– Abattoir 

22 28 22 6 21 

Trading  enterprise 
– Adam Kok Farms 

30 32 30 2 7 
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Trading Enterprise 
- Kei Fresh 

15 15 15 0 0 

CEO’s Office 6 10 6 4 40 

Finance including 
Supply Chain 
Management 

13 14 13 1 7 

Human Resource 4 4 4 0 0 

Information 
Technology 

3 3 3 0 0 

General 
Administration 

8 9 8 1 11 

TOTAL 124 157 124 33 21 

 

 Staff Turnover Rate 

Details Total  number 

of employees 

Total 

appointments 

Termination 

during the 
financial year 

Turn-over Rate 

2018/2019 124 13 11 9% 

2017/2018 117 10 5 4.3% 

 

Vacancies and turnover: 
The terminations were a result of resignations and death. The turnover rate is relatively high and 
the employees who resigned left for personal reasons and some for career growth. Their 
positions could not be filled due to financial constraints and those positions were frozen except 
for the Head: Trading Enterprises, CEO and Security Officer. The position of Adam Kok Finance 
and Admin Accountant was advertised but could not be filled during the financial year due to 
depleted cash flow in the institution. 
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Injuries, sickness a nd suspensions 
Number and Costs of injuries on duty 

Type of injury Injury leave 
taken (Days) 

Employees 
using injury 
leave (number) 

Proportion of 
employees 
using sick 
leave (%) 

Average 
Injury leave per 
employee (Days) 

Total 
estimated Cost 
(Rand value) 

Required 
basic mental 
attention only 

0 0 0 0 0 

Temporary 
total disablement 

0 0 0 0 0 

Permanent 
disablement 

0 0 0 0 0 

Total 0 0 0 0 0 

 
 

 
 

Number of days and cost of sick leave (excluding injuries on duty) 

Salary band Total 
Sick 
Leave 
(Days) 

Proportion 
Of sick leave 
with medical 
certification 
(%) 

Employees 
using  sick 
leave 
(number) 

Total 
Employees in 
post (number) 

Average 
sick leave 
per 
employee 
(Days) 

Total 
estimated 
Cost  (Rand 
value) 

Lower skilled 1 0 1 10 1 R205.48 

Semi - Skilled 61 37 11 54 9 R72 677.93 

Skilled 93 140 16 48 5 432 961.06 

Middle management 14 3 4 11 9 47 555.37 

Chief Executive 
Officer  and  Senior 
Management 

28 0 3 6 9 R873 491.80 

Total 197 180 35 129 33 1 426 891.64 

 

Injury and sick leave 

There were no injuries that  occurred on duty during the 2018/19 financial year. The highest 
rates o f  s i c k  l e a v e  t a k e n  are in the salary bands of semi- skilled personnel to middle 
management.
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Capacitating the agency w o r k f o r c e  

Due to the declining operational budget, expenditure on training has gradually reduced. 
Priority was given to those positions that must meet regulated competency requirements. 
This is done in phases. The entity prioritised employees who needed to close the 70/30 gap 
identified during placement. A Workplace Skills Plan (WSP) was developed based on the skills 
audit that was undertaken. However, the agency could not implement all training interventions 
in the Workplace Skills Plan due to budgetary constraints.
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Skills development and training 

 
Management 

level 

Gender Number of employees required and actual as at 30 June 2019 

  Learner ships Skills  programmes  and  
other 
short courses 

Other forms of training Total 

  Actual: 
End of 
17/18 

Actual: 
End of 18/19 

18/19 
Target 

Actual: 
End of 
17/18 

Actual: 
End of 
18/19 

18/19 
Target 

Actual: 
End of 
17/18 

Actual: 
End of 
18/19 

18/19 
Target 

Actual: 
End of 
17/18 

Actual: 
End of 
18/19 

18/19 
Target 

CEO and 
Senior Managers 

Female 0 0  0 0  0 2  0 2  

Male 0 0  1 0  2 0  3 0  

Middle 
Management 

Female 0 0  0 1  0 1  0 2  

Male 0 0  0 1  1 2  1 3  

Professionals Female 0 0  0 7  4 4  4 11  

Male 0 0  0 3  1 5  1 8  

Other Female 0 0  0 5  0 0  0 5  

Male 0 0  0 4  0 1  0 5  

TOTAL  0 0  0 21  8 15  9 36  
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Financial Competency Development: Progress Report 
Description Total number of 

officials employed 
by the Municipal 
Entity 

Competency 

Assessments 
completed 

Comment 

Financial Officials    
- Chief Executive Officer 1 1  
- Chief Financial Officer 1 1  
- Senior Managers 2 2  

- Any other financial officials 6 4 2 officials will undergo 

the training in July 2019 

Supply Chain Management Officials    

- Head of Supply Chain 

Management Unit 

1 1  

- Supply Chain Management 

Officials 

3 3  

 
TOTAL 

 
12 

 
12 

 

 
Skills development and related expenditure and on the financial competency regulations 
Training and Development is an ongoing exercise despite funding limitations. The Certificate in Municipal 
Financial Management is prioritised for finance officials as well as senior management. All senior managers 
have obtained the certificate and it was made a requirement in the advert that the CEO and Head: Trading 
Enterprises should be in possession of this certificate or be able to obtain it within 18 months of employment.  
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Managing the workforce expenditure 
 

• Employee expenditure 
 
Employee expenditure relates to water services, trading enterprises, special projects as well as support 
functions. The parent municipality makes available grant funding to subsidise the agency’s payroll costs.  
Expenditure incurred is kept within budget.  

 

 

Comment on workforce expenditure 

There is a  sharp increase in employee related costs compared to trends in previous years. 
This is caused by the following factors: 

a) Vacant positions particularly at senior management level were filled. 
b) Kei Fresh Produce Market staff was transferred to the agency at the beginning of the 2017/18 financial 

year. 
c) A new department of water services was established. 
d) The grant funding from the parent municipality has been reduced.  
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PART D: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
Introduction 

The agency has a functional Board of Directors in place. It is appointed by the parent municipality, the O.R. 
Tambo District Municipality. Periodically, the Board reports to the parent municipality. The Board plays its 
oversight over administration. There are Board Committees in place that are tasked with oversight over Audit, 
Risk Management, Compliance and Corporate Governance. 

Ntinga endorses the code of corporate practices and conduct as contained in the King Reports on Corporate 
Governance, and affirms its commitment to comply in all material respects with the principles incorporated in 
these reports. The agency further subscribes to the corporate governance principles set out in the Municipal 
Finance Management Act (the MFMA). 

Ntinga is committed to good corporate citizenship and organisational integrity in the running of its affairs. This 
commitment provides the parent municipality/shareholder, customers and stakeholders with the comfort that 
Ntinga’s affairs are being managed in an ethical and disciplined manner.  

 

Introduction to administrative governance 

Administration is headed by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The CEO reports and accounts to the Board of 
Directors. There are senior managers that are providing support to the CEO and they are as follows: 

• Chief Financial Officer; 
• Senior Manager Corporate Services 
• Senior Manager Trading Enterprises 
• Senior Manager Water Services 
• Company Secretary-Position (vacant). Manager in the office of the CEO is acting in this position. 

Relationships with the parent municipality 

The agency is wholly-owned by O.R. Tambo District Municipality. It receives approximately 80% of its budget 
from the parent municipality. The Board of Directors takes decisions pertaining to the agency. There are two 
municipal representatives that sit in meetings of the Board of Directors. 

Monthly and quarterly reports are submitted to the municipality. The agency’s reports are subjected to scrutiny 
by the municipality’s oversight structures such as portfolio committees and the Municipal Public Accounts 
Committee. 

Corporate Governance Framework  
The Board remains resolute in its high standards of governance, ethics, and integrity. By setting an ethical tone 
at the top and leading effectively with integrity, the Board ensures that good corporate governance is 
channelled into all levels of the organisation in order to enhance the reputation of Ntinga, build trust and, 
ultimately, result in value creation for the business and stakeholders. 
 
While the Board’s primary focus is to play a key role in determining the agency’s strategic direction, it is also 
responsible for providing continuous oversight of material matters and holding the executive management 
team accountable for their areas of responsibility in terms of managing the businesses. To enable the 
relationship between the Board and executive management to achieve results, the Board has adopted a 
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governance framework that is rooted in adhering to legislation, the principles of the King IV Report, best 
practice guidelines and other governance prescripts and guidelines. 

Conflict of Interests 
The agency’s values are entrenched through an approved Code of Ethics (Code) which guides employee 
behaviour in all internal and external stakeholder relations. In instances where a non-executive director has 
any direct or indirect personal or private business interest, he/she must withdraw from the proceedings when 
the matter is considered by the Board or any of its Committees, unless the Board or any of its Committees 
determines that a member’s interest in the matter is trivial or irrelevant. 

The agency requires all employees to sign ‘declaration of interest’ forms on an annual basis prior to the 
commencement of the financial year. The annual declaration of interests register for the Board is noted at the 
beginning of the financial year or as and when a revised declaration of interest is submitted to the Company 
Secretary. 

Company Secretarial function 
The Company Secretary is responsible to: 

a. Ensure that Board procedures are followed and reviewed regularly and that applicable rules and 
regulations for the conduct of the affairs of the Board are complied with; 

b. Guiding Board members as to how their responsibilities should be properly discharged in the best 
interests of the organisation; 

c. Keeping abreast of, and informing, the Board of current and new developments regarding corporate 
governance thinking and practice; and 

d. Maintaining statutory records in accordance with legal requirements. 
 

The Board has access to the services and advice of the Company Secretary. In addition to various statutory 
functions, the Company Secretary provides individual non-executive directors and the Board with guidance on 
duties, responsibilities and powers, and the impact of regulatory developments. The Board has empowered the 
Company Secretary with the responsibility for advising the Board, through the Chairman, on all governance 
matters. The Company Secretary acts as the primary point of contact between the Board and the agency. The 
Company Secretary is qualified to perform the duties in accordance with the applicable legislation and is 
considered by the Board to be fit and proper for the position. 

Board composition 
The Parent Municipality, appoints the Board of Directors in terms of section 93E of the Municipal Systems Act 
32 of 2000. As at 30 June 2019, the Board is comprised of nine directors of whom the majority (9), are 
independent non-executive directors, including the Chairperson. 

The Chairman and the Chief Executive’s roles and responsibilities are separate.  

The Board of Directors is composed as follows: 

BOARD MEMBER APPOINTMENT DATE 
Sitembele Eric Mase 1 July 2017 
Prof. Lindelwa Yvonne Majova-Songca 1 July 2017 
Unathi Nosiphe Mkize 1 July 2017 
Mzimkulu Msiwa 1 July 2017 
Dr. Lindile Linduxolo Ndabeni 1 July 2017 
Nandipa Sibongile Nwabisa Bam 1 July 2017 
Dr. Nandipha Toyota Ndudane 1 July 2017 
Mpumzi  Pupuma 1 July 2017 
Nosipho Ngewu 1 July 2017 
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Board induction and information 
The Company Secretary is tasked with assisting the Board with the induction of new non-executive directors 
and directors’ orientation. A formal induction programme introduces non-executive directors to the agency’s 
business environment, risk management, regulatory environment, governance framework, sustainability issues 
and fiduciary duties. Non-executive directors are regularly kept abreast of relevant agency matters and 
regulatory developments.   

Succession planning 
The Chairperson is in constant engagement with the parent municipality/shareholder on the agency’s needs 
and requirements as far as the Board matters are concerned. 

Board and committees’ membership and meeting attendance  
The Board has delegated some of its responsibilities to committees in accordance with the approved 
delegation of authority. Each Committee acts within the ambit of clearly defined terms of reference approved 
by the Board. These mandates are periodically reviewed and updated to address the recommendations of King 
IV and the requirements of the MFMA including the Protocol on Corporate Governance in the Public Sector. 

 
 
The Board has four Committees to assist it in discharging its role and responsibilities, namely: 
 

a. Audit and Risk Committee; 
b. Human Resources and Remuneration Committee; 
c. Social and Ethics Committee; 
d. Strategy, development and investment Committee 

 
Appropriate committee structures have been established in line with legislative requirements and business 
imperatives. These Committees continue to operate appropriately and they assist the agency with 
comprehensive control improvement and sound governance. 

 
Board committee composition 
 
BOARD MEMBER Audit & Risk HR & REMCO Social & 

Ethics 
Strategy, 
development & 
investment 

SE Mase (Chairperson)     
Prof. LY Majova-Songca •     
UN Mkize •  •  •   
M Msiwa •    •  
Dr. LL Ndabeni  •  •  •  
NS Bam  •   •  
Dr. NT Ndudane  •   •  
M Pupuma  •   •  
N Ngewu  •  •   
N Makuni* •     

* Member of the Audit & Risk Committee but not a member of the Board of Directors 
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Board and committee meetings attendance 

  Board: 
7 
meetings 

Audit & Risk  
6 
meetings  

HR & 
REMCO:  
3 
meetings  

Strategy, 
developme
nt & 
Investment: 
4 
meetings 

Social & 
Ethics: 
2 
meetings 

SE Mase  7 - - - - 
Prof. LY 
Majova-
Songca 

 5 5 
 
 

- - - 

UN Mkize  6 4 - - 2 
M Msiwa  3 5 - 4 - 
Dr LL 
Ndabeni 

 7 - 1 4 2 

NS Bam  7 - 2 3 - 
Dr NT 
Ndudane 

 7 - 3 4 - 

M Pupuma  7 - 3 4 - 
N Ngewu  7 - 2 - 2 
N Makuni*  - 6 - - - 

* Member of the Audit & Risk Committee, but not a member of the Board of Directors. 

 

Delegation of Authority 
The Board has delegated to the chief executive officer, the day-to-day running of the business within the 
approved Delegation of Authority Framework.  The Delegation of Authority Framework applies to all employees 
of the agency.  

Remuneration of the Board 
The remuneration of the Board members is stipulated by the parent municipality, upon appointment of the 
director and is reviewed annually by the municipality. The Board members are remunerated per meeting and 
are reimbursed for kilometres travelled in terms of Ntinga’s subsistence and travel policy. Board members do 
not claim for preparation fees and do not receive retention allowances. 
 
Board member remuneration 
Ntinga Board members were remunerated as follows in the year under review. 

 
Name Fees (Sitting 

allowance) 
Claims (Reimbursive 
travel) 

Total 

SE Mase* 12,192 43,475 55,667 
Prof. LY Majova-Songca 68,750 7,992 76,742 
UN Mkize 116,050 2,026 118,076 
M Msiwa 106,700 14,308 121,008 
Dr LL Ndabeni 77,000 4,720 81,720 
NS Bam 84,500 37,661 120,161 
Dr NT Ndudane 88,000 11,859 99,859 
M Pupuma 122,100 72,963 195,063 
N Ngewu 66,000 4,837 70,833 
N Makuni** 50,600 2,383 52,983 
TOTAL 789,892 202,220 992,112 
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*	 The chairman, Sitembele Mase, does not take any board fees except for two months that did not have an 
income. He is reimbursed for travel and accommodation costs only. 

**Member of the Audit & Risk Committee but not a member of the Board of Directors 

Matters reserved for Board decision 
a. Approving the Strategy, Corporate Plan, annual budgets and any subsequent material changes in 

strategic direction. 
b. Approving annual financial statements, as well as the declaration of dividends; 
c. Approving any significant changes in accounting policies or practices. 
d. Recommending the acquisition or disposal of a significant shareholding in the agency for the 

Shareholder’s approval. 
e. Recommending the acquisition or disposal of a significant asset for the Shareholder’s approval. 
f. Entering into a Compact with the Shareholder. 
g. Approving terms and conditions of the agency’s rights issues, public officers, capital issues or 

issues of convertible securities, including shares or convertible securities issued for acquisitions. 
h. Recommending the approval of any ordinary or special resolutions in respect of the agency to the 

Shareholder. 
i. Appointments and changes in the composition of the Board Committees, as the Board may elect 

from time to time. 
j. Effecting any changes in directors’ fees and benefits as recommended by the Human Resources 

and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Shareholder. 
k. Any amendment to such rules as recommended by the Human Resources and Remuneration 

Committee. 
 
Risk management 
The Board, through its Audit and Risk Committee, ensures that there is an effective risk management process 
within the agency. Risk management processes include policy development, facilitation of risk assessments 
and development of mitigating controls for the risks identified. 
The Board is the ultimate Chief Risk Officer of the agency and this function has been delegated to the Internal 
Audit and Risk Unit. 
 
The Board-approved Risk Management policy was implemented throughout the financial year to ensure that 
risk management activities are institutionalised within the agency. 
 
Risk assessments were facilitated by the Internal Audit unit for all business units and regional offices and the 
risk registers were submitted to the Audit & Risk Committee for review and to provide input with regards to the 
effective implementation of the Risk Management policy within the agency. 
 
The Audit and Risk Committee plays an independent oversight role which assists management with risk 
management processes and as such recommends suitable actions for mitigating unacceptable levels of risks 
identified. 
 
Risk management practices assist the agency to improve its performance and achieve its objectives, and 
ultimately ensure a positive audit outcome is received from the Auditor-General when external audit is 
conducted. 
 
Risk assessments are conducted annually. Risks are aligned to the strategy of the agency. This is done so that 
any event which may cause the set objectives not to be achieved are identified, evaluated and managed to an 
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acceptable level. Responsibilities for risk management are assigned to individual personnel. Management is 
ultimately held accountable for risk management with the Board of Directors performing oversight. For the 
2018/2019 financial year the following strategic risks were identified: 

a. Inability to provide safe, affordable and reliable water to the entire peri-urban and rural citizens of O.R. 
Tambo. 

b. Inability to meet the set production volume targets. 
c. Inability to fully utilise Adam Kok farms. 
d. Inability to fully optimise linkages of meat value chains. 
e. Inability to fully optimise linkages of fruit and vegetables value chains. 
f. Inability to fully optimise linkages of livestock value chain. 
g. Ineffective oversight by the Corporate Governance structures. 
h. Non-compliance with applicable Legislation and Corporate Policies. 
i. Inadequate ICT systems to support organisation. 
j. Adopted budget may not be credible (possible failure to secure long term funding and recapitalisation 

from the shareholder, thus affecting liquidity and going concern). 

 
Internal audit and audit committee 

 
Ntinga’s internal audit function is an independent, objective, assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve the organisation’s operations. It assists the organisation in accomplishing its objectives by 
bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to the evaluation and effectiveness of risk management, control 
and governance processes. Such assurance is based on objective information, in the form of audit opinions, 
arising from internal audits performed. 

 
The specific objectives of internal audit are to: 

• Provide an independent appraisal function to examine and evaluate the agency’s activities as a value-
added service; 

• Review the adequacy and effectiveness of systems of risk management, control and governance; 
• Assist the agency’s employees in the effective discharge of their duties and responsibilities via its 

reviews, reporting and recommendations; 
• Provide analyses, appraisals, recommendations, counsel, and information concerning the activities 

reviewed; and 
• Promote effective control at reasonable cost. 

 

Key activities and objectives of the Audit and Risk Committee 
The objective of the Audit and Risk Committee is to provide an independent oversight of the agency which 
increases the assurance stakeholders can place on the governance of the agency. 
 
As such, the committee endeavours to: 

• Assist management in their evaluation of the adequacy and efficiency of the financial reporting process, 
the system of internal control, performance information, information communication and technology and 
compliance with laws and regulations; 

• Review the work performed by the agency’s Internal Audit Unit, which comprises mainly internal audit 
assignments and risk management activities; and 

• Maintain effective working relations with the Board, management and the internal and external auditors. 
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Compliance with laws and regulations 
During the period under review, Ntinga’s Internal Audit (IA) performed comprehensive Compliance with Laws 
and Regulations reviews. The results of this review have satisfied the IA that the Agency is fully compliant with 
all laws and regulations relevant its areas of operation. 
 
The Board is of the opinion that Ntinga currently applies the governance principles contained in King IV and 
complies with all requirements of the Companies Act and the MFMA.  
USEFUL	LINKS 
Fraud and anti-corruption 

There is an anti-fraud and anti-corruption strategy in place. It includes the whistle blowing processes. Systems 
of internal controls are documented and subject to periodic reviews by internal audit. There is a functional Audit 
and Risk Committee in place which amongst other things is tasked with oversight over fraud and corruption 
management processes. 

Minimising conflict of interest 
 
Ntinga staff is required to declare their interests in other businesses/organisations on a regular basis. In 
addition to this declaration, all bid evaluation and adjudication committee members are required to declare any 
potential conflict of interest at each committee meeting. Committee members are excluded from participating in 
procurement decisions where a conflict of interest exists or is perceived to exist. Conflict of interest includes the 
interest of spouses and close family members. 
 
Further, the agency requires all suppliers registered on its database to declare its shareholders and any conflict 
of interest upon registration to avoid the inadvertent use of suppliers in an irregular manner. Ntinga prevents 
conflict of interest by ensuring adherence to National Treasury’s Code of Conduct for supply chain 
management practices. 
 
The Code specifies that an official or other role player involved with supply chain management: 
 

• May not accept any reward, gift, favour, hospitality or other benefit directly, including to any close family 
member, partner or associate of the person, of a value more than R350; 

• Must declare to the accounting officer details of any private or business interest which that person, or 
any close family member, partner or associate, may have in any proposed procurement or disposal 
process, or in any award of a contract by the entity; 

• Must immediately withdraw from participating in any manner whatsoever in a procurement or disposal 
process or in the award of a contract in which that person, or any close family member, partner or 
associate, has any private or business interest; 

• Must declare any business, commercial and financial interests or activities undertaken for financial gain 
that may raise a possible conflict of interest. The above is important to promote and ensure compliance 
with highest ethical standards in an entity. 
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT& RISK & COMMITTEE (ARC) 
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 30 June 2019. 
 
Audit & Risk Committee Responsibility 
The ARC has complied with its responsibilities arising from Sections 166(2) and 121(4) (g) of the Municipal 
Financial Management Act no 56 of 2003 (MFMA). 
 
The ARC has also reviewed and adopted appropriate terms of reference as its audit committee charter, has 
regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained 
therein. 
 
ARC Members and Attendance: 
 
During the reporting year six meetings were held. ARC members and details of attendance were as follows: 
Name of Member No. of Meetings Attended 

Prof.LY Majova-Songca 

(Chairperson) 

5 

U. Mkhize 4 

M Msiwa 5 

N Makuni 6 

 

The office of the Auditor General was invited in all ARC meetings.  
 
The effectiveness of Internal Controls  
 
The system of internal controls applied by Ntinga O.R. Development Agency SOC Ltd over financial and risk 
management is effective, efficient and transparent. 
 
In line with the MFMA requirements, Internal Audit provides the ARC and management with assurance that 
the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk management process 
as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. 
From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, it was noted that no significant or material noncompliance 
with prescribed policies and procedures have been reported. Accordingly, we can report that the system of 
internal control for the period under review was efficient and effective. However; an improvement on controls 
over Performance Information reporting was needed, as deficiencies were noted regarding submission of 
Portfolio of Evidence files in the Quarterly Internal Audit Reports and as evident by the Audit Report issued by 
the Office of the Auditor General. 
 

Internal audit has audited and made reviews on the following:- 

• Review of Quarterly Performance Reports;  
• Annual Financial Statements Review;  
• Review of Annual Performance Report; 
• Follow-up on Internal Audit Reports; 
• Implementation of Auditor General Management Audit Action Plan;  
• Risk Assessment Process;  
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• Risk Management Reviews; 
• Review of Supply Chain Management; 
• Review of Asset Management; 
• Review of implementation of the Board Resolutions; 
• Review implementation of banking systems and procedures at the Abattoir; 
• Review implementation of migration and placement policy as well as change management process plan; 
• Review the Implementation of the Fraud Prevention Policy- Consulting Review; 
• Review compliance to performance management systems and tools; 
• Review of the 2018/19 Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan; and 
• Review of the Draft 2019/20 SDBIP. 
 
The quality management of quarterly reports submitted to the ARC  
 

The ARC has reviewed the management quarterly reports tabled for submission in terms of MFMA. Systems 
and processes are in place for monitoring and reporting on budgetary performance and against set targets. 
The ARC is satisfied that the mechanisms in place for in-year management of resources are effective 
notwithstanding the deficiencies noted in the Internal Audit reviews on Quarterly Performance Reports. 

Evaluation of Financial Statements 
The ARC has reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements and annual performance report 
to be included in the annual report with the Auditor General and Management. The ARC accepted the Auditor-
General’s conclusion on the annual financial statements and has recommended the audited annual financial 
statements for approval by the board. The board has approved the audited annual financial statement on 17 
January 2020 and these will be presented at the annual general meeting.  

Internal Audit 

The ARC is satisfied that the Internal Audit function is operating effectively and that the Internal Audit 
procedures have addressed the risks pertinent to the Agency. The Committee noted and accepted the 
appointment of the Director: Internal Audit in December 2018. 

Auditor General South Africa (AGSA) 

The ARC has met with the Auditor-General of South Africa and there are no unresolved issues. 
 
Appreciation 
 
I wish to express my appreciation to the members of the Committee and to Ntinga Development Agency‘s 
management team for their commitment and support in this financial year. 
 
……………………………..  

Professor L.Y. Majova-Songca  

Chairperson 
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Report	on	the	audit	of	the	financial	statements	

 

PART E: FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Report of the auditor-general to Eastern Cape Provincial Legislature on Ntinga OR Tambo 
Development Agency SOC Ltd 

 

Opinion 
 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Ntinga OR Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd set 
out on pages 54 to 108 which comprise statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, the 
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement and the 
statement of comparison of budget information with actual information for the year then ended, as 
well as the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

 
2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 

the Ntinga OR Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd as at 30 June 2019, and its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with GRAP and the requirements 
of the Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003) and the 
Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008). 

 
Basis for opinion 

 
3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities 
for the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor’s report. 

 
4. I am independent of the entity in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the International Ethics 

Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants and, parts 1 and 3 of 
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants as well as the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South 
Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
IESBA codes. 

 
5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

unqualified opinion. 
 

Emphasis of matter 
 

6. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 

Irregular Expenditure 
 

7. As disclosed in note 31.2 to the financial statements, the entity incurred irregular expenditure of R1,6 
million, as it did not follow proper tender processes and operating policies of the entity. 

 
Responsibilities of the accounting office for the financial statements 

 
8. The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting officer is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with GRAP and the requirements of the 
Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003) and the Companies Act 
of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008), and for such internal control as the accounting officer 
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determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
9. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the Ntinga 

OR Tambo Development Agency SOC Ltd’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 
Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

 
10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

 
11. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the 

annexure to this auditor’s report. 
 

Report on the audit of the annual performance report 

Introduction and scope 

11. I conducted a limited assurance engagement in accordance with the International Standard on 
Assurance Engagements, ISAE 3000, Assurance engagements other than audits or reviews of 
historical financial information. 

 
12. The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature from, and are less in 

extent than for a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently they do not enable me to 
obtain the assurance necessary to become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a 
reasonable assurance engagement. As a result, the level of assurance obtained in a limited assurance 
engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have been obtained had we 
performed a reasonable assurance engagement. 

 
13. I have undertaken a limited assurance engagement on the reported performance information for the 

following selected objectives presented in the annual performance report of the entity for the year 
ended 30 June 2019: 

 
 
 
 

Objectives Pages in the annual 
performance report 

Strategic goal 1- sustainable water services (water resource 
management supply and sanitation) systems. 

24 

Strategic goal 2- enhanced and enabled full value chains (upstream 
and downstream) for agricultural produce, markets, abattoirs, and 
aquaculture. 

25 
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14. I believe that the evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusions. 
 

15. The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected objectives are as 
follows: 

 
Strategic goal 1: sustainable water services (water supply and sanitation) systems. 

 
1.1.1 Number of assessed, refurbished, and maintained of non-functional schemes in KSD water 
schemes. 

 
Assessed water schemes 

 
16. The systems and processes that enable realible reporting of achievements against the indicators were 

not adequately designed because the assessment reports were not signed by artisans which rendered 
the reports invalid. I was unable to confirm the reported achievement by alternative means. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported 
achievement of 58 assessed water schemes reported in the annual performance report. 

 
Strategic goat 2: enhanced and enabled full value chains (upstream and downstream) for 
agricultural produce, markets, abattoir and aquaculture 

2.3.2 Revenue generated from livestock (cattle) produce and sold to Umzikantu 
 

17. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of the target. 
There was no clear and logical link between the indicator “Revenue generated from livestock (cattle) 
produced and sold to Umzikantu Abattoir and other markets” and the target (1497 Cattle supplied to 
Umzikantu Abattoir) to which it relates. The indicator focused on revenue generated, while the target 
aimed to achieve number of cattle. I was unable to con- firm the reported achievement by alternative 
means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were required to the 
reported achievement of 464 cattle supplied to Umzikantu Abattoir. 

 
Other matters 

 
18. I draw attention to the matters below. 

 
Achievement of planned targets 

 
19. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 20 to 30 for information on the achievement of 

planned targets for the year. This information should be considered in the context of the material 
findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in paragraphs 16 
to 17 of this report. 

 
Adjustment of material misstatements 

 
20. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. These 

material misstatements were on the reported performance information of sustainable water services 
(water supply and sanitation) systems and enhanced and enabled full value chains (upstream and 
downstream) for agricultural produce, markets, abattoir and aquaculture. As management 
subsequently corrected only some of the misstatements, I raised material findings on the usefulness 
and reliability of the reported performance information. Those that were not corrected are reported 
above. 
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Other	information	

 
Introduction and scope 

 
21. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to 

report material findings on the compliance of the entity with specific matters in key legislation. I 
performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance. 

 
22. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislations are as follows:  

 

Procurement and contract management 
 

23. Some of the invitations for competitive bidding were not advertised for a required minimum period 
of days, in contravention of SCM regulation 22( 1) and 22(2). 

 
24. Bid documentation for procurement of commodities designated for local content and production, did 

not stipulate the minimum threshold for local production and content as re- quired by the 2017 
preferential procurement regulation 8(2). Similar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year. 

 
25. The performance of some of the contractors or providers was not monitored on a monthly basis, 

as required by section 116(2)(b) of the MFMA. 
 

26. The contract performance and monitoring measures and methods were not sufficient to ensure 
effective contract management, as required by section 116(2) (c) of the MFMA. 

 
Annual financial statements and annual report 

 
27. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in 

accordance with the requirements of section 122(1) of the MFMA. Material misstatements of 
revenue, expenditure, contingent liabilities, irregular expenditure and deviations disclosures identified 
by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were subsequently corrected, resulting in the 
financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion. 

 

28. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report which includes the directors’ report, the audit committee’s 
report and the company secretary’s certificate as required by the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 
(Act No. 71 of 2008). The other information does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s 
report and those selected objectives presented in the annual performance report that have been 
specifically reported in this auditor’s report. 

 
29. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and 

compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion 
or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 
30. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the 
selected objectives presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

Report	on	the	audit	of	compliance	with	legislation	
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Internal	control	deficiencies	

31. I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. When I do receive and 
read this information, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am required to 
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the other information be 
corrected. If the other information is not corrected, I may have to retract this auditor’s report and re-
issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this will not be necessary. 

 
 

32. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance 
information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any 
form of assurance on it. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control 
deficiencies that resulted in the basis for the opinion, the findings on the annual performance report 
and the findings on compliance with legislation included in this report. 

 
• Controls over daily and monthly processing and reconciling of transaction were in place. These 

were however not always operating effectively as material misstatements were identified. 
• Policies and procedures were established, however they were not always adhered to. This 

was evidenced by the non-compliance with legislation identified that could have been 
prevented had the policies and procedures been properly implemented. 

 
 
 

East London 

   
 

30 November 2019 
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Annexure - Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit 
 

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the 
financial statements, and the procedures performed on reported performance 
information for selected objectives and on the entity’s compliance with respect to 
the selected subject matters. 

 
Financial statements 

 
2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as 

described in this auditor’s report, I also: 
 

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control 

 
• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control 

 
• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the 
board of directors, which constitutes the accounting officer. 

 
• conclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors, which constitutes 

the accounting officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Ntinga OR Tambo 
Development Agency SOC Ltd’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in 
my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about 
the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the 
opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the 
information available to me at the date of this auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause an entity to cease continuing as a going 
concern 

 
• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
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fair presentation 
 

Communication with those charged with governance 
 

3. I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 
4. I also confirm to the accounting officer that I have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my independence and, where 
applicable, related safeguards. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
















































































































